
NOTICE OF REGULARMEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Thursday, September 26, 2024 - 6:00 PM
Redwoods Room, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Campus

700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA.

Supporting documentation for this agenda is available on the website at:
https://www.MendocinoChCd.gov

Individuals who need this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related
modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting should contact the District
at 707-937-3089 at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. The Board reserves the right to maintain
meeting decorum, mute or remove a member of the public for inappropriate behavior which is
disruptive. This Board Meeting is being held in person. Meeting attendees may also join virtually

using the Zoom link below.

Join ZoomMeeting:
https://zoom.us/j/9210401893?pwd=SE9PY1JBNUZvSEVIY0tYNm9iTDhzdz09&omn=97347972878

Meeting ID: 921 040 1893
Passcode: 634678

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

1a) Roll Call: Paul Garza Jr. (Chair), Paul Katzeff (Vice Chair), Susan Savage (Secretary), Sara
Spring (Treasurer), Jan McGourty (Member).

2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Members of the public are welcome to address the Board on items not listed on the agenda, but
within the jurisdiction of the Board. Time is limited to 3 minutes per speaker with a 20-minute
total time limit for all public comments. No action or discussion shall be taken on any item
presented except that the Board may respond to statements made or questions asked, or may ask
questions for clarification. All matters of an administrative nature will be referred to staff. All
matters pertaining to the Board may be scheduled for discussion at a future meeting or referred
to staff for clarification or a report, at the pleasure of the Board. If general public comment
exceeds the 20 minute time limit, members of the public who have not had the opportunity to
speak on items not on this agenda will have the opportunity to do so after the business on the
agenda is concluded.

September 26, 2024, Page 1 of 4 kw/Regional Government Services

https://www.mchcd.org
https://zoom.us/j/9210401893?pwd=SE9PY1JBNUZvSEVIY0tYNm9iTDhzdz09&omn=97347972878


3. REPORTS

3a) Receive and file MCHCD Board Chair’s Report - Paul Garza Jr.
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only.

Attachments: September, 2024 Board Chair’s Report.

3b) Receive Mendocino Coast Healthcare Foundation - Terry Ramos, Board Chair.
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only.

3c) Receive and file Adventist Health Monthly Report - Judy Leach, President, and Peter
Johnston, Facilities Manager, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital.
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only.

Attachments: AHMC - District Funds Summary 9-20-24.pdf, AHMC Facility Project - Plan
2024-25

3d) Receive and file Traditional Medicine Symposium Report - Paul Katzeff.
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only.

3e) Receive and file Agency Administrator’s Report - Katharine Wylie.
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only.

Attachments: September 26, 2024 Agency Administrator’s Report.

4. CONSENT CALENDAR

The Consent Calendar will be acted upon by the Board at one time without discussion. Any
Board member may request that any item be removed from the Consent Calendar for individual
consideration.

ITEMS RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL:

4a) Draft Minutes of the 8/22/2024 Regular Meeting.
Attachments:8/22/2024 Regular Meeting Minutes.

4b) Draft Minutes of the 9/9/2024 Regular Meeting.
Attachments: 9/9/2024 Regular Meeting Minutes.

4c) MCHCD/LWV Candidate Forum, held in conjunction with the non-partisan Mendocino
County League of Women Voters, on October 2, 2024, at Fort Bragg Town Hall, 6:00-7:30 pm.
Attachments:MCHCD/LWV Candidate Forum detail.

4d) Letter of Support to Governor Newsom, AB869.
Attachments: 9/26/2024 Letter of Support to Governor Newsom, AB 869.

September 26, 2024, Page 2 of 4 kw/Regional Government Services



5. NEW BUSINESS

5a) Receive and consider adoption of the Board Bylaws amendments, dated 9/26/24, Directors
Savage and McGourty, Policy/Bylaws ad hoc committee.
Recommended Action: Adopt amended Board Bylaws.

Attachments:MCHCD Board Bylaws, dated 9/26/24.

5b) Receive and consider Board Travel and Reimbursement Policy, Directors Savage and
McGourty, Policy/Bylaws ad hoc committee.
Recommended Action: Adopt Board Travel and Reimbursement Policy.

Attachments: Board Travel and Reimbursement Policy, dated 9/26/24.

5c) Consider a change of date in the Regular meeting calendar for October 2024, Chair Garza.
Recommended Action: Adopt change in date for the October meeting to October 22, 2024.

Attachments: Board Regular Meeting Calendar draft revision.

5d) Receive Check Register Report, as of 8/31/24, CFOWayne Allen.
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only.

Attachments: Check Register Report, as of 8/31/24.

5e) Receive Actual vs. Budget Report, as of 8/31/24, CFOWayne Allen.
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only.

Attachments: Actual vs. Budget Report, as of 8/31/24.

5f) Receive Treasury Bill Inventory Portfolio as of 8/31/24, CFOWayne Allen.
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only.

Attachments: Treasury Bill Inventory Portfolio as of 8/31/24.

5g) Receive Summary of Cash Balances as of 8/31/24, CFOWayne Allen.
Recommended Action: None. This item is for information only.

Attachments: Summary of Cash Balances as of 8/31/24.

6. CLOSED SESSION
6a) Gov. Code §54956.8: Conference with Real Property Negotiators, 721 River Drive, Fort
Bragg. Ca.
District Negotiators: Appointed District ad hoc Subcommittee and legal counsel Negotiating
parties: GL Bruno, Agent,Mendocino Coast Medical Plaza, LLC.
Under negotiation: price and terms of payment of possible purchase.

September 26, 2024, Page 3 of 4 kw/Regional Government Services



6b) Report out from Closed Session.

7. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD

8. ADJOURNMENT
The next Regular Meeting of the Board will be held on October ____, 2024, at 6:00 pm, at
the Redwoods Room, 700 River Drive, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital, Fort
Bragg, Ca.

Dated: September 23, 2024

Katharine Wylie, MS Ed
Agency Administrator, MCHCD

September 26, 2024, Page 4 of 4 kw/Regional Government Services



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
775 RIVER DRIVE, FORT BRAGG 95437

MEMORANDUM

TO: MCHCD Board of Directors

FROM: Paul Garza, Jr.

DATE: September 26, 2024

SUBJECT: Monthly Report

MENDOCINO COAST HEALTHCARE FOUNDATION
Congratulations to Chair Terry Ramos, Vice-Chair Charlene McAllister and the other members of
the Board of Directors of our Healthcare Foundation on the recent, very successful WineSong
Celebration. It was an excellent event and while final accounting has not been completed at the
time of this writing, I have been informed that the expected net is somewhere between $250K
and $300K.

LEGISLATION
Regrettably, Senate Bill 1432 was vetoed by Governor Newsom. AB 869 authored by our
Assembly Member Jim Wood, however, is on the Governor’s desk for signature. Most observers
are hopeful that it will be signed. This legislation would provide an additional three years to
complete seismic retrofits and will provide some additional relief to rural hospitals. On tonight’s
agenda we have a proposed letter of support to the Governor urging his signature on this
important legislation. We encourage all of you to submit letters and/or email messages to the
Governor supporting this important legislation. Contact information and a sample letter are
available on our website.

MEASURE C
Because there has been concern expressed about the Measure C Parcel Tax, I have directed staff
to open a new account with Tri-Counties Bank. Henceforth, Measure C incremental payments
will be deposited in that account. It will be easier for the public to see these funds as a line
item. We are committed to ensuring these funds are used appropriately and for the purposes
designated by the voters.

It is important, however, to remember that this parcel tax provides less than $1.6M per year to
the District. For perspective, since affiliation in July 2020, a little less than $6.3M has been
received. Additionally, over the next five years (when Measure C expires), we can expect less
than $8M from the parcel tax. While it is an important source of funding for our hospital, it
represents less than 1/5 of the District’s expected revenue over the next five years and will
never be adequate to meet the needs for maintenance and improvements at our Hospital.

1

Kathy W
Item 3a)



CHAIR’S ADVISORY GROUP – HOSPITAL 2030
These meetings continue to be highly productive in exploring options for a future hospital. We
have reviewed a prior model developed by our architectural firm in 2022, the potential to add
an ambulatory/outpatient surgical center, or an augmented version of what is called a Micro
Hospital, and various combinations of the above.

Meanwhile, Adventist Health is working to define more completely a business model that they
believe will be sustainable in our community without comprising high quality services. Going
forward, it is important for our community to understand that it will take a great deal more than
the currently available tax dollars to build/renew/modernize/improve our hospital so that it can
continue to effectively serve our community. It will take any grant funding we identify and
attract from the government, from established philanthropic non-government organizations,
and the efforts of our Mendocino Coast Healthcare Foundation.

ELECTION OF BOARD MEMBERS
I encourage all of our citizens to attend the League of Women Voters Candidate Forum for our
MCHCD Candidates on October 2 at 6 PM at the Town Hall in Fort Bragg. The District is
supporting the event by paying the rental for the facility.

2



Received - Improvement Funds 9,523,666        
Received - Special Allocation Funds 2,000,000        
Total funds received 11,523,666    

Projects - Spent 5,308,235        
Building Repairs 1,838,314        
Total Spent 7,146,549      

Commited (not spent) 4,377,117      

Amount Available -                  

Total Open Projects remaining balance to complete 5,499,009        
Balance needed to complete (1,121,892)       

Mendocino Coast - District Funds Summary
From June 30, 2020 to July 31, 2024

Capital Spending & Building Repairs from June, 2020 to July 31, 2024

Kathy W
Item 3c



M
en

do
ci

no
 C

oa
st

 H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

D
is

tr
ic

t
R

ec
on

ci
lia

tio
n 

as
 o

f 0
8-

16
-2

02
4 

 

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 M
C

H
C

D
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

`

Su
b

C
ap

ita
l D

es
cr

ip
tio

n
Ap

pr
ov

ed
  -

 G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

 
AH

 A
ct

ua
l s

pe
nd

in
g

D
iff

er
en

ce
 

be
tw

ee
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
M

C
H

C
D

 v
s 

AH
 s

pe
nt

Es
tim

at
ed

 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 
am

ou
nt

 to
 

co
m

pl
et

e 
C

IP

To
ta

l C
ap

ita
l 

C
os

t
C

ap
ita

l i
n 

Pr
og

re
ss

YE
S/

N
O

   
   

   
 N

ot
es

   
   

   
   

   
  

 
 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
s

3.
1

R
ad

io
 S

ys
te

m
- E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
30

,3
65

 
30

,3
64

 
(1

)
 

30
,3

64
 

N
o

C
lo

se
d

3.
2

Am
bu

la
nc

e 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t U

ni
t

24
5,

77
4

 
19

1,
97

6
 

(5
3,

79
8)

 
19

1,
97

6
 

N
o

C
lo

se
d

4.
5

M
ed

ic
al

 A
ir 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
1,

24
2,

68
9

 
1,

19
2,

66
1

 
(5

0,
02

8)
 

1,
19

2,
66

1
 

N
o

C
lo

se
d

4.
6

Fi
re

 S
pr

in
kl

er
43

,6
12

 
43

,6
12

 
- 

43
,6

12
 

N
o

C
lo

se
d

4.
7

R
oo

f R
ep

ai
r- 

Pa
tie

nt
 S

up
po

rt 
Bu

ild
in

g
37

5,
99

7
 

37
5,

26
9

 
(7

28
)

 
37

5,
26

9
 

N
o

C
lo

se
d

4.
8

3 
D

 M
am

m
og

ra
ph

y-
 F

ac
ilit

y 
R

em
od

el
16

4,
09

6
 

16
4,

09
6

 
- 

16
4,

09
6

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d
5.

1
Su

rg
er

y-
 E

SU
 M

ac
hi

ne
 &

 F
or

ce
 T

ria
d 

Li
ga

tu
re

29
,8

98
 

29
,8

98
 

- 
29

,8
98

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d
5.

2
Su

rg
er

y-
 M

ed
ic

al
 W

as
te

 D
ev

ic
e

41
,9

03
 

41
,9

03
 

- 
41

,9
03

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d
5.

4
H

VA
C

- S
ur

ge
ry

 &
 C

en
tra

l S
te

ril
e 

Su
pp

ly
44

2,
81

7
 

44
3,

81
2

 
99

5
 

44
3,

81
2

 
Ye

s
Ph

as
e 

1 
co

m
pl

et
ed

. P
ha

se
 2

 n
o 

st
ar

te
d 

ye
t

4.
9

R
oo

f R
ep

ai
r- 

M
ai

n 
Bu

ild
in

g
57

,0
40

 
57

,0
40

 
- 

57
,0

40
 

N
o

C
lo

se
d

4.
10

Fi
re

 R
ol

l-D
ow

n 
N

FP
A 

C
od

e 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

13
5,

00
0

 
98

,2
34

 
(3

6,
76

6)
 

78
,7

66
 

17
7,

00
0

 
N

o
Pr

oj
ec

t c
om

pl
et

ed
,  

$7
8,

11
4.

83
 in

vo
ic

es
 in

 tr
an

si
t

4.
11

In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tro

l -
 L

ob
by

 F
lo

or
in

g
13

2,
72

2
 

13
2,

72
2

 
- 

13
2,

72
2

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d
4.

12
O

nc
ol

og
y-

In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tro

l U
pd

at
es

60
,4

80
 

64
,9

00
 

4,
42

0
 

64
,9

00
 

N
o

C
lo

se
d

4.
14

In
fe

ct
io

n 
C

on
tro

l -
 E

R
 W

ai
tin

g,
 F

ro
nt

 lo
bb

y,
 P

T,
 L

ab
27

5,
99

8
 

25
8,

49
8

 
(1

7,
50

0)
 

25
8,

49
8

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d
4.

15
In

fe
ct

io
n 

C
on

tro
l -

 F
lo

or
in

g 
- R

T 
C

ar
di

o,
 P

T 
R

oo
m

s
15

3,
45

5
 

15
3,

45
5

 
- 

15
3,

45
5

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d
4.

17
ED

 H
ot

 W
at

er
 H

ea
te

r 
20

,5
16

 
22

,9
44

 
2,

42
8

 
22

,9
44

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d
4.

18
Zo

ll 
D

ef
ib

ril
la

to
rs

 (7
)

17
0,

54
0

 
17

0,
54

0
 

- 
17

0,
54

0
 

N
o

C
lo

se
d

N
/A

Le
gi

on
al

ia
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
Eq

ui
pm

en
t R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

11
,2

02
 

- 
(1

1,
20

2)
 

G
ar

re
tt 

C
al

la
ha

n 
- P

ur
ch

as
e 

se
rv

ic
e

1.
1

ED
 - 

M
ed

 R
oo

m
 - 

Fl
oo

rin
g 

- 
4,

22
3

 
4,

22
3

 
4,

22
3

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d.
 N

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 M
C

H
C

D
's

 li
st

4.
19

R
eg

ul
at

or
y/

D
ef

er
re

d 
- G

en
er

at
or

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

- 
55

,4
66

 
55

,4
66

 
55

,4
66

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d.
 N

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 M
C

H
C

D
's

 li
st

4.
23

Fu
rn

itu
re

 (R
eg

is
tra

tio
n,

 E
R

 W
ai

tin
g,

 F
ro

nt
 L

ob
by

, P
T,

 L
ab

, I
C

U
)

- 
11

1,
09

0
 

11
1,

09
0

 
11

1,
09

0
 

N
o

C
lo

se
d.

 N
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 M

C
H

C
D

's
 li

st
4.

25
Pl

at
el

et
 A

gi
ta

to
r

- 
10

,0
51

 
10

,0
51

 
10

,0
51

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d.
 N

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 M
C

H
C

D
's

 li
st

4.
26

Ic
e 

M
ak

er
s

- 
58

,1
70

 
58

,1
70

 
48

,8
30

 
10

7,
00

0
 

N
o

 
5.

5
St

er
ile

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

fe
as

ib
ilit

y 
st

ud
y

- 
55

,4
90

 
55

,4
90

 
55

,4
90

 
N

o
C

lo
se

d.
 N

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 M
C

H
C

D
's

 li
st

- 
Ca

pi
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

s 
In

-p
ro

gr
es

s

4.
1

Bu
ild

in
g 

R
ep

ai
rs

- 
1,

83
8,

31
4

 
1,

83
8,

31
4

 
1,

83
8,

31
4

 
Ye

s
N

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 M
C

H
C

D
's

 li
st

1.
2

ED
 H

VA
C

 (S
ou

th
 a

nd
 C

en
te

r 3
 U

ni
ts

) &
 E

D
 L

ob
by

 
- 

86
,5

72
 

86
,5

72
 

1,
16

3,
42

8
 

1,
25

0,
00

0
 

Ye
s

N
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 M

C
H

C
D

's
 li

st
1.

3
Au

to
 T

ra
ns

fe
r S

w
itc

h 
- E

D
1,

70
0,

00
0

 
- 

(1
,7

00
,0

00
)

 
1,

70
0,

00
0

 
1,

70
0,

00
0

 
Ye

s
Pe

nd
in

g 
es

tim
at

ed
 c

os
t d

ep
en

di
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

St
at

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.

4.
4

Au
to

Tr
an

sf
er

 S
w

itc
h 

- M
ai

n
84

6,
80

2
 

92
0,

11
7

 
73

,3
15

 
25

,0
00

 
94

5,
11

7
 

Ye
s

Pe
nd

in
g 

es
tim

at
ed

 c
os

t d
ep

en
di

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
St

at
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

.
4.

2
R

eg
ul

at
or

y/
D

ef
er

re
d 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 In
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
- 

27
4,

16
5

 
27

4,
16

5
 

- 
27

4,
16

5
 

Ye
s

N
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 M

C
H

C
D

's
 li

st
4.

16
Ph

ar
m

ac
y 

Fr
id

ge
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t P

ro
je

ct
- 

22
,0

17
 

22
,0

17
 

42
,9

83
 

65
,0

00
 

Ye
s

N
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 M

C
H

C
D

's
 li

st
, g

ot
 th

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t, 

in
st

al
la

tio
n 

is
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s
4.

21
PS

B 
Ar

ea
s 

- F
lo

or
in

g
- 

- 
- 

52
,0

00
 

52
,0

00
 

Ye
s

N
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 M

C
H

C
D

's
 li

st
, i

t h
as

 n
ot

 s
ta

rte
d

4.
22

Pa
tie

nt
 C

ar
e 

Ar
ea

s 
- F

lo
or

in
g 

- 
65

,5
45

 
65

,5
45

 
77

,8
90

 
14

3,
43

5
 

Ye
s

N
o 

in
cl

ud
ed

 in
 M

C
H

C
D

's
 li

st
, i

t h
as

 n
ot

 s
ta

rte
d

4.
24

Va
cu

um
 P

um
p 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
50

0,
00

0
 

45
0

 
(4

99
,5

50
)

 
49

9,
55

0
 

50
0,

00
0

 
Ye

s
It 

ha
sn

't 
st

ar
te

d 
ye

t
4.

27
AH

M
C

 L
ab

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

- 
15

9,
05

6
 

15
9,

05
6

 
35

8,
30

4
 

51
7,

36
0

 
Ye

s
N

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 M
C

H
C

D
's

 li
st

5.
3

Tw
o 

O
R

 R
oo

m
s 

an
d 

Su
rg

ic
al

 A
re

a 
Fl

oo
rin

g 
R

ep
ai

rs
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

58
,8

10
 

- 
(5

8,
81

0)
 

58
,8

10
 

58
,8

10
 

Ye
s

It 
ha

sn
't 

st
ar

te
d 

ye
t

5.
6

St
er

ile
 P

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
D

ep
t. 

R
en

ov
at

io
n,

 (N
o 

R
en

ta
l)

- 
13

,9
00

 
13

,9
00

 
1,

31
6,

10
0

 
1,

33
0,

00
0

 
Ye

s
N

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 M
C

H
C

D
's

 li
st

, i
t h

as
 n

ot
 s

ta
rte

d
4.

28
G

en
er

at
or

 (4
) A

nn
ua

l r
ep

ai
rs

 &
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 - 

20
24

- 
- 

- 
77

,3
47

 
77

,3
47

 
Ye

s
N

o 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 M
C

H
C

D
's

 li
st

To
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 E
xp

en
se

s
$6

,7
39

,7
16

$7
,1

46
,5

49
$4

06
,8

33
$5

,4
99

,0
09

$1
2,

64
5,

55
8

# [A
DV

EN
TI

ST
HE

AL
TH

:IN
TE

RN
AL

]



Pr
oj

ec
t S

ta
rt

 
Da

te
Du

ra
tio

n
/ C

om
pl

et
io

n
Re

oc
cu

rr
in

g 
An

nu
al

 C
os

t
Ar

ea
 / 

De
pt

.
Pr

oj
ec

t
De

ta
ile

d
Es

tim
at

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t C
os

t

AH
 P

ro
je

ct
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t &

 S
ta

ff 
Su

pp
or

t o
f P

ro
je

ct
 

(A
H 

La
bo

r C
os

t 1
0%

)
To

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
 

Es
tim

at
e 

Co
st

Sc
he

du
le

d
De

sc
rip

tio
n

Ju
st

ifi
ca

tio
n

20
23

20
23

No
M

ai
n

TV
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t -

 2
5 

- P
ur

ch
as

ed
 a

nd
 C

om
pl

et
ed

Re
pl

ac
e 

fa
ili

ng
 T

V'
s i

n 
M

ed
Su

rg
 &

 IC
U

$1
2,

50
0

$1
,2

50
$1

3,
75

0
20

24
20

24
No

Bi
oM

ed
18

 M
ed

Su
rg

, 4
 IC

U 
- H

os
pi

ta
l B

ed
s -

 P
ur

ch
as

ed
Be

d 
Re

pl
ac

em
en

t, 
Pa

tie
nt

 S
af

et
y 

$2
46

,9
81

$2
4,

69
8

$2
71

,6
79

20
24

20
24

No
Bi

oM
ed

Al
ar

is 
In

fu
sio

n 
Pu

m
ps

 - 
Pu

rc
ha

se
d 

an
d 

Co
m

pl
et

ed
Pa

tie
nt

 S
af

et
y,

 E
M

R,
 P

ha
rm

ac
y,

 P
at

ie
nt

 C
on

tin
ui

ty
$2

42
,2

14
$2

4,
22

1
$2

66
,4

35

20
24

20
24

Ye
s

OR
Ul

tr
as

on
ic 

Cl
ea

ne
r -

 C
SS

 - 
Pu

rc
ha

se
d 

- I
ns

ta
lla

tio
n 

Pe
nd

in
g 

9/
12

/2
4

Eq
ui

pm
en

t F
ai

lu
re

 - 
Re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r f
un

ct
io

na
l O

R
$2

7,
50

0
$2

,7
50

$3
0,

25
0

20
24

20
25

No
DI

On
go

in
g 

CT
 R

ep
ai

rs
 &

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

Do
w

nt
im

e,
 E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
Re

pa
irs

 / 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 - 

Se
rv

ice
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t
$9

8,
25

0
$9

,8
25

$1
08

,0
75

20
24

20
25

No
DI

On
go

in
g 

M
RI

 R
ep

ai
rs

 &
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Do

w
nt

im
e,

 E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

Re
pa

irs
 / 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 - 
Se

rv
ice

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t

$1
10

,2
29

$1
1,

02
3

$1
21

,2
52

20
24

20
24

Ye
s

Fa
cil

ity
Ph

am
ac

y 
BD

 P
yx

is 
- E

qu
ip

m
en

t /
 In

st
al

la
tio

n
Co

m
pu

te
riz

ed
 R

x D
isp

en
se

 a
nd

 tr
ac

ki
ng

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t

$3
57

,6
59

$3
,9

68
$3

61
,6

28
20

24
20

24
Ye

s
Ye

s
Fa

cil
ity

Ge
ne

ra
to

r P
M

's 
- A

nn
ua

l -
 C

om
pl

et
ed

 fo
r 2

02
4

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Po

w
er

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

&
 S

af
et

y 
$7

4.
1k

 p
er

 y
ea

r -
 O

ne
 Y

ea
r

$7
4,

10
0

$7
,4

10
$8

1,
51

0
20

24
20

24
Ye

s
M

ai
n

Fa
n 

co
il 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t r

ep
ai

r T
JC

 fi
nd

in
g 

ai
rfl

ow
TJ

C 
Fi

nd
in

g 
fo

r A
irf

lo
w

$7
50

,0
00

$7
5,

00
0

$8
25

,0
00

20
24

20
25

Ye
s

La
b

Cl
in

ica
l L

ab
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t -
 Le

ve
l 1

 (C
rit

ica
l I

ns
tr

um
en

ts
)

Re
pl

ac
e 

En
d 

of
 Li

fe
, H

ig
h 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 co
st

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

$6
68

,4
23

$6
6,

84
2

$7
35

,2
65

20
24

20
24

No
Ye

s
Fa

cil
ity

El
ec

tr
ica

l I
R 

Pa
ne

l S
ur

ve
y 

- A
nn

ua
l

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Te
st

in
g 

- A
nn

ua
l 1

8k
 p

er
 y

ea
r -

 O
ne

 Y
ea

r
$1

8,
00

0
$1

,8
00

$1
9,

80
0

20
24

20
25

No
Fa

cil
ity

Do
or

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t -
 F

ai
le

d 
Ex

te
rio

r /
 In

te
rio

r D
am

ag
ed

On
go

in
g 

Do
or

 re
pl

ac
em

en
ts

 a
s i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
, S

ta
ff 

en
tr

an
ce

, O
ld

 O
B 

as
 

ex
am

pl
es

$1
00

,0
00

$1
0,

00
0

$1
10

,0
00

20
24

20
24

No
Fa

cil
ity

Pa
in

tin
g 

Ex
te

rio
r -

 O
ld

 O
B,

 D
I, 

M
ed

Su
rg

Lif
ec

yc
le

 - 
Ex

te
rio

r p
at

ch
in

g 
an

d 
Pa

in
t

$4
8,

00
0

$4
,8

00
$5

2,
80

0

20
24

20
25

No
Bi

oM
ed

Nu
rs

e 
Ca

ll 
Sy

st
em

 - 
Up

da
te

s t
o 

in
te

gr
at

e 
Be

ds
 "A

la
rm

s"
In

te
gr

at
e 

be
d 

al
ar

m
s a

nd
 n

ur
se

 ca
ll 

fo
r p

at
ie

nt
 sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 fa
ll 

pr
ev

en
tio

n,
 e

xis
tin

g 
pa

ne
ls 

w
ill

 b
e 

up
gr

ad
ed

$3
9,

68
3

$3
,9

68
$4

3,
65

1
20

24
20

25
Ye

s
M

ai
n

M
ed

Su
rg

 - 
Pa

nt
ry

 - 
Re

pa
irs

Re
pa

ir 
/ r

ep
la

ce
 ca

se
w

or
k 

an
d 

FF
E 

to
 cr

ea
te

 a
 co

m
pl

ia
nt

 sp
ac

e 
fo

r f
oo

d 
se

rv
ice

$5
0,

00
0

$5
,0

00
$5

5,
00

0
20

24
20

25
No

Pl
an

t
Pl

um
bi

ng
 Le

ak
s -

 C
en

tr
al

 P
la

nt
Co

pp
er

 P
ip

in
g 

Le
ak

s a
t m

ul
tip

le
 lo

ca
tio

ns
$1

75
,0

00
$1

7,
50

0
$1

92
,5

00
20

24
20

25
No

M
ai

n
Pl

um
bi

ng
 Le

ak
s -

 M
ai

n 
Ho

sp
ita

l
Co

pp
er

 P
ip

in
g 

Le
ak

s a
t m

ul
tip

le
 lo

ca
tio

ns
$7

5,
00

0
$7

,5
00

$8
2,

50
0

20
24

20
25

Ye
s

La
b

El
ec

tr
ica

l -
 A

dd
 o

ut
le

ts
 fo

r L
ab

 R
ef

rig
er

at
or

s /
 F

re
ez

er
s

M
ul

tip
le

 p
ie

ce
s o

f C
lin

ica
l R

ef
rig

er
at

io
n 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t s
in

gl
e 

cir
cu

it 
br

ea
ke

rs
$1

00
,0

00
$1

0,
00

0
$1

10
,0

00
20

24
20

25
Ye

s
M

ai
n

W
al

k-
in

 S
ho

w
er

 M
ed

 S
ur

g
Pa

tie
nt

 &
 N

ur
se

 S
af

et
y

$5
0,

00
0

$5
,0

00
$5

5,
00

0
20

24
20

25
Ye

s
Fa

cil
ity

Ex
ha

us
t F

an
s -

 R
oo

f
Re

pa
ir 

/ r
ep

la
ce

 e
xis

tin
g 

ro
of

to
p 

ex
ha

us
t f

an
s a

t E
OL

$1
50

,0
00

$1
5,

00
0

$1
65

,0
00

20
24

20
29

Ye
s

Fa
cil

ity
CC

TV
 S

ys
te

m
 &

 D
oo

r A
cc

es
s "

Se
cu

rit
y"

Sa
fe

ty
 &

 S
ec

ur
ity

 o
f s

ta
ff 

&
 p

at
ie

nt
$7

29
,4

17
$7

2,
94

2
$8

02
,3

59
20

25
20

25
No

Fa
cil

ity
Fi

re
 D

am
pe

r T
es

tin
g 

- 5
 Y

ea
r

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

Te
st

in
g

$1
8,

50
0

$1
,8

50
$2

0,
35

0

20
25

20
25

No
DI

M
RI

 Li
gh

tin
g 

Up
gr

ad
e

Ex
ist

in
g 

In
ca

nd
es

ce
nt

 la
m

ps
 a

re
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 a
va

ila
bl

e,
 U

pg
ra

de
 to

 D
ire

ct
 C

ur
re

nt
 LE

D
$1

5,
00

0
$1

,5
00

$1
6,

50
0

20
25

20
25

Ye
s

Fa
cil

ity
El

ec
tr

ica
l -

 a
dd

 ch
ar

gi
ng

 lo
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r M

ed
ica

l E
qu

ip
m

en
t

Po
w

er
 T

ap
s (

St
rip

s)
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

 su
bs

tit
ut

e 
fo

r p
er

m
an

en
t p

ow
er

.
$7

5,
00

0
$7

,5
00

$8
2,

50
0

20
25

20
26

Ye
s

Fa
cil

ity
IT

 In
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
/ P

ag
in

g 
Sy

st
em

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t

EP
IC

 - 
EM

R 
up

da
te

 w
ill

 re
qu

ire
 th

is 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
$1

,9
75

,0
00

$1
97

,5
00

$2
,1

72
,5

00
To

ta
ls

$6
,2

06
,4

56
$5

88
,8

48
$6
,7
95
,3
04

AH
 h

as
 P

ai
d 

in
 2

02
4

$1
,2

54
,5

79
Pr

oj
ec

t t
o 

st
ar

t a
nd

 co
m

pl
et

e 
in

 2
02

4
$1

,8
41

,5
17

Pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
st

ar
t i

n 
20

24
 a

nd
 w

ill
 co

nt
in

ue
 in

to
 2

02
5

$3
,6

99
,2

09
To

ta
l

$6
,7
95
,3
04

AH
M

C 
/ M

CH
CD

 - 
Fa

cil
ity

 P
ro

je
ct

 - 
Pl

an
 2

02
4-

25
Ad

di
tio

na
l t

o 
th

e 
20

20
-2

02
4 

M
CH

CD
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

Lis
t o

f E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

HC
Ai

 
Pe

rm
it 

Re
qu

ire
d

# [A
DV

EN
TI

ST
HE

AL
TH

:IN
TE

RN
AL

]



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT
775 RIVER DRIVE, FORT BRAGG 95437

MEMORANDUM

TO: MCHCD Board of Directors

FROM: Paul Katzeff

DATE: September 26, 2024

SUBJECT: Report on the Traditional Medicine Symposium, Sept. 6, 2024.

In my opinion we did a good event with all attendees feeling they got a good chunk of info.
The presentation received a round of applause at the close.
Attendees (38) lingered for about a half hour after the close to discuss their interests with other
attendees.
Many asked why they were not informed earlier.
Most attendees found out from reposts on social media from two sources with their own
followers.
Grass Roots Institute
Spirit Spirit House
A video was created by City employees assigned to the event, and posted on the Local
Governmental affairs Channel 3.
Information on the Symposium and a copy of the video are also posted on the MCHCD Website:
https://www.mendocinochcd.gov/traditional-medicine-providers-symposium

The presenters wanted more of this sort of effort and this moderator will ask the full Board to
repeat with the same presenters in October, with the venue being the Caspar Community
center and a third Symposium in Mendocino at the Mendocino Community Center.

Most negative feedback came via email to me expressing exasperation with the publicity timing
and the first Friday date.

1

https://www.mendocinochcd.gov/traditional-medicine-providers-symposium
Kathy W
Item 3d)



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



REGULARMEETINGOF THE BOARDOFDIRECTORS
MENDOCINOCOASTHEALTHCAREDISTRICT

DRAFTMINUTES
Thursday, August 22, 2024, at 6:00 PM

Redwoods Room, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Campus
700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

Chair Garza called the meeting to order at 6:20 p.m.

This meeting was held in-person and by teleconference in accordance to the Brown Act.

Directors Present: Chair Paul Garza, Jr. Vice Chair Paul Katze�
Secretary Susan Savage Treasurer Sara Spring
JanMcGourty

A quorum of the Board was present.

Management Team: Agency Administrator Katharine Wylie
Chief Financial O�cer Wayne Allen
District Attorney Craig Steele
Clerk of the Board Norma I. Alley, MMC

2. CLOSED SESSION

2a) GC § 54956.9(d)(1): Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation (1 matter).

District General Counsel Steele introduced the closed session item.

Chair Garza called for public comment.

MalcolmMacdonald spoke to the way the item was agendized.

Seeing no further comment, Chair Garza closed public comment.

District General Counsel Steele let the Board into Closed Session at 6:24 p.m.

Mendocino Coast Health Care District BoardMeeting Minutes, August 22, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 1 of 5

Kathy W
Item 4a)



The Closed Session adjourned and the Regular Meeting reconvened at 6:34 p.m.

2b) Report out from Closed Session.

Chair Garza reported there was no reportable action.

3. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Linda Jo Stern spoke to the concern of oncology services being discontinued and transparent communication from the
Board on decisions such as this (full written testimony was provided to the Board and entered into the record).

Katie Sanchez spoke to the concern of oncology services being discontinued and transparent communication from the
Board on decisions such as this.

Judy Valadeo spoke to the concern of oncology services being discontinued.

Jenny Shattuck spoke to the concern of oncology services being discontinued and transparent communication from
the Board on decisions such as this.

Malcolm Macdonald spoke to prohibition of public criticism of the governing body during public comment, missing
links to meeting video or audio recordings on the website, questions regarding contract services, and the public’s ability
to participate.

4. REPORTS

4a) Receive and File MCHCD Board Chair’s Report

Chair Garza reported on his written report and �elded inquiry from the Board.

4b) Receive Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Report

Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital President Judy Leach reported on general hospital matters pertaining to
the District and �elded inquiry from the Board.

Secretary Savage suggested letters to Congress be written by the community to support the hospital’s e�orts and e�orts
to continue oncology services. Chair Garza directed sta� to post a sample letter on the MCHCD website for easy
access for the public to download.

4c) Receive Mendocino Coast Healthcare Foundation Board Report

There was no report.

4d) Receive and �le Seismic Compliance and Communications Team Progress Report

Mendocino Coast Health Care District BoardMeeting Minutes, August 22, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 2 of 5



There was no report.

4e) Receive and �le Agency Administrator’s Report

Agency Administrator Wylie reported on her written report and provided updates on general matters of the District
and �elded inquiry from the Board.

Chief Financial O�cer Allen reported on the audit and �elded inquiry from the Board.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR

5a) Draft Minutes of the 7/25/2024 Regular Meeting
5b) Appointment of Jessica Grinberg, Former MCHCD Board Chair, to the Measure C Committee
5c) Appointment of Gabriel Maroney and Lynn Finley, R.N., to the Planning Committee

Chair Garza called for public comment.

MalcolmMacdonald spoke to the inconsistencies in the appointment process.

Seeing no further comments, Chair Garza closed public comment.

Motion: Secretary Savage made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar. Motion was seconded by Treasurer Spring.
The motion was approved by a 5 Yes/0 No vote.

Chair Garza called a �ve minute recess at 7:40 p.m.

6. NEW BUSINESS

6a) Receive and Consider Sta� Recommendation to Rescind the Health Reimbursement Account Bene�t
for Board Members

Chair Garza and District General Counsel Steele provided a report and �elded inquiry from the Board.

Chair Garza called for public comment.

MalcolmMacdonald provided general comments regarding the agenda item.

Jenny Shattuck provided general comments regarding the agenda item.

Seeing no further comments, Chair Garza closed public comment.

General discussion ensued amongst the Board.

Motion: Director McGourty made a motion to approve rescinding the health reimbursement account bene�t Board
Members, e�ective when Board Members are reseated after the November 2024 elections, and have a future discussion

Mendocino Coast Health Care District BoardMeeting Minutes, August 22, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 3 of 5



regarding stipends. Motion was seconded by Vice Chair Katze�. The motion was approved by a 4 Yes/1 No (Spring)
vote.

6b) Receive and Consider Board Response to a Mendocino County Grand Jury Report, Dated June 12,
2024, Entitled, “MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT - Sick, but Returning to Health”

Chair Garza introduced the item.

General discussion commenced amongst the Board regarding items noted in the Grand Jury Report. Treasurer Spring
noted there were missing videos from the District website. The Board directed sta� to restore the videos on the
website.

Chair Garza called for public comment.

MalcolmMacdonald provided general comments regarding the agenda item.

Seeing no further comment, Chair Garza closed public comment.

Motion: Secretary Savage made a motion to postpone the item to a Special Meeting, date uncertain. Motion was
seconded by Treasurer Spring. The motion was approved by a 5 Yes/0 No vote.

6c) Receive MCHCD Board Standing Planning Committee Chair’s Report and Approve Cost Not to Exceed
$1000, to Convene a Traditional Medical Providers Symposium on September 6, 2024, at Fort Bragg Town
Hall, 6:00-7:30 pm

Vich Chair Katze� provided a report and �elded inquiry from the Board.

Chair Garza called for public comment. Seeing no one come forward, he closed public comment.

Motion: Secretary Savage made a motion to approve expenditure of costs not to exceed $1500 to sponsor the
symposium. Motion was seconded by Treasurer Spring. The motion was approved by a 5 Yes/0 No vote.

6d) Receive Check Register Report, as of 7/31/24
6e) Receive Actual vs. Budget Report, as of 7/31/24
6f ) Receive Treasury Bill Inventory Portfolio, as of 7/31/24
6g) Receive Summary of Cash Balances, as of 7/31/24

Hearing no objection from the Board, as all items are information only, the four agenda items were heard at one time.

Chief Financial O�cer Allen provided a report on Agenda Items 6d, 6e, 6f, and 6g and �elded inquiry from the Board.
Agency Administrator also �elded inquiry from the Board.

Mendocino Coast Health Care District BoardMeeting Minutes, August 22, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 4 of 5



Treasurer Spring requested inclusion in communications amongst the management team and/or Board regarding
�duciary responsibility and matters. Chair Garza noted support of this request and directed the management to
include the Treasurer in communications.

Chair Garza called for public comment.

MalcolmMacdonald provided general comments regarding the agenda item.

Seeing no further comments, Chair Garza closed public comment.

7. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD

Secretary Savage spoke to an upcoming festival.

7. ADJOURNMENT

Seeing no further business, Chair Garza adjourned the meeting at 8:51 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

__________________________________
Norma I. Alley, MMC, Clerk of the Board

Mendocino Coast Health Care District BoardMeeting Minutes, August 22, 2024 – Regular Meeting Page 5 of 5



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



SPECIALMEETINGOF THE BOARDOFDIRECTORS
MENDOCINOCOASTHEALTHCAREDISTRICT

DRAFTMINUTES
Wednesday, September 9, 2024, at 3:00 PM

Redwoods Room, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital Campus
700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER

Chair Garza called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.

This meeting was held in-person and by teleconference in accordance to the Brown Act.

Directors Present: Chair Paul Garza, Jr. Vice Chair Paul Katze� (arrived at 3:15 p.m.)
Secretary Susan Savage Treasurer Sara Spring (participated via teleconference)
JanMcGourty

A quorum of the Board was present.

Treasurer Spring requested the Board accept her participation by teleconference for just cause in accordance with
AB2449. By consensus, the Board accepted Treasurer Spring’s request to participate in the meeting by teleconference.

Management Team: Agency Administrator Katharine Wylie
Chief Financial O�cer Wayne Allen
Clerk of the Board Norma I. Alley, MMC

2. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA

Due to the Special Meeting, there was no public comment.

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

3a) Appointment of Mikael Blaisdell to the Standing Planning Committee.

Chair Garza called for public comment. Seeing no one come forward, he closed public comment.

Mendocino Coast Health Care District BoardMeeting Minutes, September 9, 2024 – Special Meeting Page 1 of 3

Kathy W
Item 4b)



Motion: Secretary Savage made a motion to approve the Consent Calendar. Motion was seconded by Director
McGourty. The motion was approved by a 3 Yes/1 No (Spring)/1 Absent (Katze�) vote.

4. REGULAR CALENDAR

4a) Receive and Consider Approval of Board Response to a Mendocino County Grand Jury Report, Dated
June 12, 2024, Entitled, “MENDOCINO COAST HEALTH CARE DISTRICT - Sick, but Returning to
Health”

Treasurer Spring suggested excerpts of the Grand Jury Report language be included in the responsive record, for each
item the response is referring to.

Chair Garza called for public comment.

MalcolmMacdonald provided general comments regarding the item.

Seeing no further comment, Chair Garza closed the public comment.

Motion: Director McGourty made a motion to approve the Board response to the Grand Jury report, with the
amendment to include the excerpt from the Grand Jury report into the response, and submit by the September 12,
2024, deadline. Motion was seconded by Secretary Savage. The motion was approved by a 3 Yes/1 No (Spring)/1
Abstain (Katze�) vote.

4b) Receive and �le the Capital Expenditure Report Update

Chief Financial O�cer Allen provided a report and �elded inquiry from the Board.

Chair Garza called for public comment.

Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital President Judy Leach provided general comments regarding the
presentation.

Peter Johnston provided general comments regarding the presentation.

Seeing no further comments, Chair Garza closed the public comment.

The Board directed Treasurer Spring and Chief Financial O�cer Allen to work out the capital expenditures and
budget.
Discussion ensued regarding the Measure C funds.

5. ADJOURNMENT

Seeing no further business, Chair Garza adjourned the meeting at 4:12 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Mendocino Coast Health Care District BoardMeeting Minutes, September 9, 2024 – Special Meeting Page 2 of 3



__________________________________
Norma I. Alley, MMC, Clerk of the Board

Mendocino Coast Health Care District BoardMeeting Minutes, September 9, 2024 – Special Meeting Page 3 of 3



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



MCHCD Board Candidate Forum
October 2, 2024

Fort Bragg Town Hall
363 N. Main Street

6:00 -7:30 pm

Board Candidates on the November 4, 2024 ballot:

Gabriel Maroney
Lynn Finley, RN
Mikael Blaisdell

Paul Katzeff, Incumbent

The forum will be hosted by
Mendocino Coast HealthCare Foundation Treasurer:

Susan Warner

C0-sponsored by

Mendocino County League of Women Voters
and the

Mendocino Coast Health Care District Board

LWV/MCHCDCandidate Forum - October 2, 2024, Page 1 of 2 kw/Regional Government Services

Kathy W
Item 4c)



LWV Candidate Forum - Projected Costs

Town Hall Cleaning Deposit $200 (refundable)
Town Hall Technical Asst Fee $273
Event Flyer print cost $100

Total$573 ($200 refundable)

LWV/MCHCDCandidate Forum - October 2, 2024, Page 2 of 2 kw/Regional Government Services



September 26, 2024

The Honorable Gavin Newsom
Governor, State of California
1021 0 Street, Suite 9000
Sacramento, CA 95814

SUBJECT: AB 869 (Wood) - REQUEST FOR SIGNATURE

Dear Governor Newsom:

The Mendocino Coast Health Care District respectfully requests your signature on
Assembly Bill (AB) 869 (Wood) — legislation that will prevent California’s rural and
district hospitals from closing and create a path for financially distressed hospitals to
comply with California’s 2030 seismic standards.

AB 869 covers hospitals like ours in remote locations, with the next hospital many miles
away, and where closure would immediately jeopardize the health of the community and
its ability to respond to emergencies. This bill would provide a discretionary up to
three-year delay, with the potential for two additional discretionary years if certain
challenges arise, for financially distressed rural and district hospitals to meet the
compliance requirements.Without such relief, the current deadline may force
our hospital to close.

We are not alone. Half of California’s 60-plus rural community hospitals — often the
sole source of care for miles and miles like ours — lose money every day to care for
patients. That number is up 10 percentage points in the past five years alone. This is
largely the result of state and federal policies that provide lower reimbursement to rural
hospitals.

A potential delay of up to five years, at the discretion of the Department of Health Care
Access and Information (HCAI), provides us with a path to keep our hospital open as we
work to meet the 2030 seismic standards. Funding for construction costs for our
hospitals is simply difficult to achieve.

It is important to note that our district hospital like many others must go to voters to
approve a bond or tax to fund these projects or to leverage government financing, and
with the current toll of inflation, competing interests and the 67% voter approval
threshold such an initiative has become much harder to pass. With 2030 rapidly
approaching, our district hospital is struggling to secure financing for these projects.

MCHCD, PO BOX 579, Fort Bragg, CA. 95437 Page 1 of 2 kw/Regional Government Services

Kathy W
Item 4d)



In addition, AB 869 provides access to grant funding for seismic assessments and would
expand eligibility for these grants under the Small and Rural Hospital Relief Program.
Specifically, single- and two-story general acute care hospitals in rural areas with less
than 80 general acute care beds and less than $75 million in annual revenue would now
be eligible. Many of these types of hospitals do not have the financial resources or ability
to acquire funding from other sources for planning and estimating the costs of 2030
seismic compliance.

It is important to note that given the 2030 seismic requirements are already existing
law, there is no budget impact for HCAI. The only change is the timeframe for
compliance beyond 2030.

We are proud to join our colleagues throughout rural California and the California
Hospital Association in supporting AB 869 for hospitals in California’s most vulnerable
communities. By providing additional time to meet the 2030 standard as well as access
to grant funding for seismic construction assessments, AB 869 would deliver the relief
that small, rural, and district hospitals need to achieve compliance. Due to ongoing
financial challenges, rising health care delivery costs, and long-term workforce
shortages, many of these hospitals will be forced by state law to close unless a delay is
provided.

As the state experienced with the closure of Madera County’s only hospital, the health of
any community is at grave risk when its hospitals are on the brink.

For these reasons, and behalf of our hospital and the families that depend
upon its services, we respectfully ask for your signature on AB 869

Sincerely,

Paul Garza, Jr.
Chair, Mendocino Coast Health Care District

MCHCD, PO BOX 579, Fort Bragg, CA. 95437 Page 2 of 2 kw/Regional Government Services



Mendocino Coast Health Care District
Board Bylaws

Amended, by the Board of Directors

September 26, 2024

ARTICLE I. GENERAL INFORMATION
Section 1. The District
The name of the District is the Mendocino Coast Health Care District (the "District"), an
independent health care district, formed on January 17, 1967, by a vote of the District’s
constituents for the purpose of constructing a public hospital to serve the people of
Mendocino County and continues to operate as a local healthcare district pursuant to
California Health & Safety Code § 32000, et seq., (the "Health Care District Law"). The
hospital construction was completed in 1971.

The principal office of the District is hereby fixed and located at 775 River Drive, Fort Bragg
CA, 95437. All Board meetings are to be held in the jurisdiction of the District.

ARTICLE II. GOVERNANCE
Section 1. Board of Directors

The District is governed by an elected five-member Board of Directors (the "Board"). Board
members must be a registered voter within the District. The Board is responsible for
oversight of all District facilities and shall make all rules and regulations necessary for the
administration of the District facilities. Members of the Board serve in a voluntary capacity.

The Board acts in accordance with, and has all rights and responsibilities set forth in, The
Ralph M. Brown Act, Government Code section 54950, et seq., as is now in effect or as
amended in the future. The Board has responsibility to act transparently and in the best
interests of the public. The Board shall establish district policies and perform strategic
planning and carry out their fiduciary responsibility for meeting the district’s financial,
contractual and regulatory obligations, to protect and enhance district assets.

In addition to the Bylaws, the Board shall adopt a policy manual governing specific matters
of the Board to augment the Bylaws (the "Policy Manual"), including, at a minimum, a local
Conflict-of-Interest Code and policies for ethics standards, Board and committee meetings,
investments, legal claims, contracts and purchasing, and public records and retention.

These Bylaws and policy manual shall be reviewed by the Board biannually, or more often as
necessary, to ensure they comply with the District Law and all other applicable federal and
state laws and regulations in keeping with the functions of the Board.

These Bylaws may be amended by a quorum of the Board at a duly noticed Board meeting,
provided a full statement of each proposed amendment has been sent to each director along

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 1 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services

Kathy W
Item 5a)



with the meeting agenda and packet.

Section 2. Bylaws Authority

These Bylaws are intended for the governance of the District Board in compliance with the
Health Care District Law and other applicable Federal and State statutes and regulations.

The Board is empowered to perform all legal acts necessary and prudent to carry out the
provisions of the Health Care District Law.

The adoption of these Bylaws or the repeal of a resolution by the Bylaws shall not affect:
● Vested rights and obligations pertaining to any prior resolution; or,
● Other matters of record referring to resolutions and not included within the Bylaws.

All previous legal agreements will continue in effect under their terms.

Section 3. Maintenance of Bylaws.
A signed copy of the Bylaws shall be maintained on file in the District office, together with
each adopted resolution making a change to the Bylaws. A current copy shall be maintained
on the District website. Each Director shall be given a copy of the Board Bylaws and Policy
Manual. Additional copies of the Bylaws shall be distributed as requested.

Section 4: Board Powers
The Board of Directors is the decision-making body for the District. The Board controls all
District powers and makes decisions as a whole group, not individually. The Board can
create rules and regulations for the District by a majority vote, as long as these rules don’t
conflict with the Bylaws or State or Federal Law. All directors shall have one vote each at
meetings of the Board, and each Director's vote shall have equal weight. There shall be no
voting by proxy.

The Board is authorized to make appropriate delegations of its powers and authority to
officers, consultants, and employees of the District. As a whole, the Board must:

● Establish policies for the management of all District operations, facilities and
activities;

● Oversee the Lease of the Hospital and other designated assets of the District, insure
compliance of the Lessee, and monitor the function of the District, as Lessor;

● Establish a job description and appoint a General Manager and evaluate the
General Manager at least once a year;

● Form and engage with required governance structures established by local funding
measures;

● Provide assistance consistent with the terms of any lease;
● Make grants to nonprofit entities that are able to provide health related services in

the District;

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 2 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services



● Follow all rules in the Bylaws and Health Care District law;

Section 5. Board Membership
County Election
Directors shall be elected in accordance with the Health Care District Law, except the date of
election shall be the same date as, and consolidated with, the statewide general election. The
dates of any notices, canvass of voters, certification of election, and all other procedural
requirements shall comply with those for the statewide general election.

A Director shall be elected for a term of four years or until his or her successor is elected and
has qualified. The terms of Directors shall be staggered such that two seats are filled in one
District election and three seats are filled in the following District election.

Assuming Office
Directors shall take office at noon on the first Friday following certification of the election
results by the Mendocino County Registrar of Voters, as provided by Elections Code § 10554,
and upon receipt of an original, notarized oath of office, by the Mendocino County Elections
office.

Appointment
The office of Director may become vacant before the end of the term because of death,
resignation or other event causing vacancy. A resignation shall be in writing, is effective
when accepted by the Board and is irrevocable. The position shall be filled in accordance
with applicable State law.

Quorum
Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, if the number of remaining members of
the District Board falls below a quorum, then at the request of the District secretary or a
remaining member of the District Board, the Board of Supervisors shall promptly appoint a
person to fill the vacancy, or may call an election to fill the vacancy. The Board of
Supervisors shall only fill enough vacancies by appointment or by election to provide the
District Board with a quorum. If the vacancy occurs in the first half of a term of office and at
least 130 days prior to the next general district election, the person appointed to fill the
vacancy shall hold the office until the next general district election that is scheduled 130 or
more days after.

Attendance
All Directors shall notify the Board Chair or his/her designee not later than 24 hours prior to
any regular meeting if they do not plan to attend the meeting. In the event a Director fails to
do so, then that absence shall be deemed unexcused. If any Director is deemed unexcused
and absent from three consecutive regular meetings or from three or more of any five
consecutive meetings of the Board (including meetings of any Standing Committee), the
Board may, by vote and resolution, declare that a vacancy exists on the Board, and that

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 3 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services



Director's term shall expire upon such resolution’s adoption, In accordance with Health &
Safety Code § 32100.2, as amended.

Resignation
Any Board member may resign effective upon giving written notice to the chair, the
secretary, or the board, unless a notice specifies a later time for the effectiveness of such
resignation.

Fiduciary Responsibility
The Board and persons authorized to make investment decisions on behalf of the District are
trustees, and therefore fiduciary and subject to the prudent investor standard when
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing such public
funds. Investment of surplus funds of the district may be made in those investments
authorized by Government Code § 53601, the District’s investment policy, or such other
provisions as may be provided from time to time by law.

Section 6.￼Board Ethics and Conflict of Interest Code.
It is the intent of the Board to act in the highest ethical standard in carrying out its duties
to the public. It is also the intent of the Board to protect the District's interests when
entering into a transaction or agreement, and not the private interests of any director,
officer, consultant or employee. To that end, the Board has adopted an "Ethics Policy “and
a "local Conflict of Interest Code'' contained in the Board Policy Manual.

California Assembly Bill 1234 provides that, if a local agency gives any type of
compensation, salary, or stipend to, or reimburses the expenses of a member of its
'legislative body' (as that term is defined in California Government Code § 54952), that
local agency's officials must receive training in ethics.

Section 7. Board Organization
Officers of the Board
The officers of the Board shall be Chair, Vice-Chair, Treasurer, and Secretary. Officers shall
be elected by majority vote, at the Board's regular January meeting for the calendar year,
and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board, until their successor assumes office or until he
or she is otherwise disqualified to serve. A Board Member cannot hold more than one Board
officer office at a time. The Treasurer does not need to be an elected member of the Board.
Chair.
The Chair shall preside over and conduct all meetings of the Board of Directors, shall carry
out the resolution and orders of the Board of Directors, and shall exercise such other powers
and perform such other duties as the Board of Directors shall prescribe including, but not
limited to, the following:

● Prepare Board agendas with input from Board members, with the assistance of the
General Manager, Chief Financial Officer and legal counsel, as necessary;

● Call the meeting to order at the appointed time;

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 4 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services



● Announce the business to come before the Board in its proper order;
● Enforce the Board's policies in relation to the order of business and the conduct of

meetings;
● Recognize persons who desire to speak, and protect the speaker who has the floor

from
● disturbance or interference;
● Explain what the effect of a motion would be if it is not clear to every member;
● Restrict discussion to the question when a motion is before the Board;
● Rule on parliamentary procedure;
● Put motions to a vote, and state clearly the results of the vote; and
● Preserve order and decorum.
● Represent the Board (or appoint a designee) at official functions as necessary for

coordination and liaison with community groups, public agencies, and residents
served by the District;

● Serve as a spokesperson for the Board regarding board actions, and keep the Board
promptly informed;

● Sign as Chair: contracts, conveyances, and other instruments in writing, and checks
on the funds of the District as the Board shall authorize or direct the Chair to sign;

● Be responsible for coordination and liaison with Adventist Health, and District legal
counsel, auditors, employees and consultants;

● Receive all requests from Board members for the preparation of legal opinions, legal
memoranda, contracts, corporate documents or other legal work for legal counsel;

● Prepare memoranda and other materials which are necessary to hold closed session
meetings, with the assistance of the General Manager, Chief Financial Officer and
legal counsel, as necessary;

● Prepare Board Resolutions and other material pertinent to Board meetings as
required with the assistance of the General Manager, Chief Financial Officer and legal
counsel, as necessary;

● Invite legal counsel to attend meetings, as needed;
● Designate staff or members of the Board to undertake special responsibilities and to

report to the Board on those activities;
● Appoint, with the concurrence of the Board, members of Standing and ad hoc

committees; and
● Perform other duties pertaining to the office as prescribed by the Board.

Vice-Chair.
In the absence or inability of the Chair to serve, the Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the
Chair and shall perform other duties as are prescribed by the Board. The Vice Chair shall
serve as one member of the Standing Planning Committee, as the Chair.

Secretary.

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 5 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services



The Secretary shall perform oversight to ensure that:

● Minutes of all meetings of the Board are prepared and filed in the official records of
the District and are available on the District website. At a minimum, meeting Minutes
shall show the meeting time and place, the names of Directors present, and a
statement of the vote of the Directors on all motions and resolutions;

● The official record of resolutions, correspondence, actions, or orders passed or
adopted by the Board are maintained in the records of the District;

● The official record of all correspondence and financial reports are maintained in the
records of the District;

● That appropriate notices are provided in accordance with these Bylaws or as required
by law; and,

● That all duties incident to the office and such other duties as prescribed by the Board
are completed.

Treasurer.
The Treasurer shall perform oversight to ensure that:

● In conjunction with the Chief Financial Officer and the General Manager, present an
annual fiscal year budget (July 1 to June 30), to the Board for adoption at the June
meeting each year.

● there is accurate accounting of the District funds;
● s/he acts as Board liaison with the Measure C Standing committee; and,
● all duties incident to the office and such other duties as prescribed by the Board shall

be carried out.

Section 8. Board Meetings.
Regular meetings of the Board shall be held on the fourth Thursday of the month at 6:00
p.m., except that the November and December and January meetings will be held on the
second Thursday of the month, in accordance with an annual calendar adopted at the
January meeting. Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at 700 River Drive, Redwoods
Room, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital, Fort Bragg, Ca., unless an alternate
location is specified by action of the Board. Special meetings shall be held within the
jurisdiction of the District, or another location permitted by law, as specified in the Notice
and Call of the Special meeting.

Meetings of the Board shall be open and public, except as allowed to be closed by law.
Persons shall be permitted to attend any portion of a meeting, except a closed session. The
Board or the Board Secretary as applicable may adjourn or cancel a meeting as provided in
the Brown Act. The Board has adopted the use of Robert's Rules of Order as modified for
small groups for the conduct of all meetings. When feasible, remote online access for
meeting attendance by the public will be provided.

A quorum of the Board shall not discuss the business of the District directly, serially or
through an intermediary, except at a properly noticed public meeting. A quorum of the
Board may discuss the time, place and agenda for a meeting at any time. Two members of
the Board (but not a standing committee) may discuss District business at any time.

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 6 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services



Section 9. Board Compensation and Benefits
Members of the Board of Directors shall serve without compensation and are entitled to
stipends for Directors’ attendance at regular Board meetings, special Board meetings, and
Board Standing committee meetings. The Board may adopt a policy authorizing a stipend
not to exceed fifty dollars ($50) per meeting, for each committee meeting or other meeting
authorized by Board or Chair of the Board; and not to exceed $250 a month in accordance
with § 32103 of the California Health and Safety Code, as amended.

A budget for the Board of Directors educational expenses is developed each year. The Board
shall review all travel and incidental expenses annually at the regular June meeting.

The District shall provide Errors and Omission (E&O) insurance to cover members of the
Board of Directors

Section 10. Board Expenses.
Directors must be authorized by the Board in advance to incur expenses for District
purposes and shall submit a written request with receipts for reimbursement. If Directors
are reimbursed for expenses incurred in attending a meeting or event on District business,
the Director shall provide a brief public report on such activity at the next Board meeting.

Section 11. Appointment of General Manager
The Board shall be solely responsible for selecting a General Manager or designee, who shall
be responsible for managing the District's day-to-day operations, facilities, and finances.
The General Manager serves at the will of the Board and may be an employee or an
independent contractor.

The General Manager may recommend and shall implement policies adopted by the Board.
The General Manager shall ensure that an annual independent audit of the District is
performed in accordance with law, commencing in August of each year.

The Board shall adopt a written statement setting forth the qualifications, authority, and
duties of the General Manager. The Board shall set the General Manager's compensation.
The Board shall at least annually conduct a review of the performance and compensation of
the General Manager.

Board members may discuss District business with the staff members or consultants
individually, but no individual Board member may give direction to staff members or
consultants. In consultation with Board members, the Board Chair has sole authority to
direct staff or consultants to carry out the business of the Board.

Section 12. Legal Counsel
An attorney shall be retained by the Board to act as General Counsel. The Board may appoint
Special Counsel. The Board will set the compensation of General Counsel and Special
Counsel. General and Special Counsel serve at the pleasure of the Board. The General
Counsel is directly accountable to the Board. General Counsel shall provide legal advice and

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 7 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services



services as requested by the Board and shall work with the Chair and the General Manager
on the District's legal matters.

The General Counsel represents the District. General Counsel shall not represent individual
Board members, Officers or Employees, unless authorized in writing by the Board. General
Counsel will recommend appointment of Special Counsel when conflicts arise or if necessary
to deal with matters requiring specialized knowledge. Neither General Counsel nor Special
Counsel shall respond to individual Board members' requests for service, but may respond
to individual Board members’ questions regarding District legal issues or business. All Board
member requests for general or special legal counsel service shall be referred to the Chair.

Section 13. Indemnification.
The District shall, to the full extent permitted by law, defend and indemnify each of its Board
members, officials, and employees against expenses, judgments, fines, settlements and other
amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with any civil claim arising out of
the scope of his or her employment for the District. For purposes of this section, the term
"employee" shall have the same meaning set for in Government Code § 810.2, or any
successor statute thereof, and includes without limitation any person who was or is a
director, officer, employee or servant of the District.

For claims other than civil claims, the District may, but is not obligated to, defend and
indemnify its Board members, officials and employees (as defined above). If an employee
seeks defense and indemnification in any such proceeding, he or she shall submit a written
request to the Board, which shall conduct a review of the request in accordance with
Government Code § 995.6 and § 995.8, or any successor statutes

ARTICLE III. BOARD COMMITTEES
Section 1. General.
Committees of the Board shall be established via appointment by the chair, via a majority
vote and resolution of the Board, and may be Standing or ad hoc. Standing committees are
subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act provisions. Ad hoc committees are not subject to Brown
Act requirements but shall provide reports back to the Board in open and public meetings.

Standing committee membership shall be elected or appointed at will at the January regular
Board meeting, or as otherwise needed for ad hoc committees. Two directors shall be
appointed to each Standing committee, one of whom shall be the committee chair, and both
of whom shall be a voting member. Any Director not appointed to a Standing committee
may serve as an alternate to that Standing committee. A Regular meeting calendar of
Standing committees shall be developed and posted on the District website. All committees
shall be advisory to the Board, except as otherwise expressly specified by the Board.

If committee members are absent from two consecutive meetings of that committee, the
Board may replace such an absentee member by appointing another Board member via
majority vote to serve on the committee. Every Standing committee shall keep action
minutes of each of its meetings, and every committee shall report to the Board periodically

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 8 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services



concerning its activities.

The Board may, by majority vote, appoint a temporary Committee Member to serve during
the absence of a regular committee member.

Any member of a committee may be removed at any time by the Chair, subject to the consent
of the Board.

Section 2. Standing Committees.
Planning
A Standing Committee on Planning, composed of two Board members and up to Six
community members, will be chaired by the Vice Chair and shall meet at least quarterly and
report to the Board thereafter. The purpose of the Planning Committee includes but is not
limited to

● Developing a plan and performing oversight for projects authorized by the Board;
● Developing a plan and performing oversight for ongoing facilities maintenance and a

five-year facilities improvement plan;
● Recommending and overseeing Human Resource policies, compensation and

benefits; and,
● Recommending community members as appropriate for Board appointment to the

Planning Committee.

Finance
A Standing Finance Committee composed of two board members and up to Six community
members, chaired by the Treasurer, shall meet at least quarterly and report to the Board
thereafter. The purpose of the Finance Committee includes but is not limited to:

● Ensuring an annual independent audit is performed;
● Providing a budget recommendation to the Board in May of each year for adoption in

June;
● Recommending and overseeing fiscal policies and investments, and accounting and

budgeting practices;
● Reviewing Board financial statements and reports; and
● Reviewing Measure C Committee recommendations;

Section 3. Ad Hoc Committees.
Ad hoc committees, including not more than two directors, may be established by the Chair
for defined tasks of a limited duration. The Chair shall notify the Board that an ad hoc
committee has been established, and the purpose thereof. An ad hoc committee shall only
perform those duties assigned by the Chair, and upon their completion be discharged. The
Chair shall determine the members of the committee. The Chair shall be notified in advance
of all ad hoc committee meetings.

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 9 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services



ARTICLE IV. DISSOLUTION
Any proposal for dissolution of the District shall be subject to confirmation of the voters in
the District, in accordance with California Government Code § 56378. There shall be no
contemplation of profit or monetary gain, and no distribution of profits to any individual,
under any guise whatsoever, nor any distribution of assets or surpluses to any individual on
the dissolution of the District.

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify:

That I am the duly elected and acting Secretary of Mendocino Coast Healthcare District; and
that the foregoing Bylaws comprised of ten (10) pages constitute the Bylaws of the District, ,
as amended and adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on September 26, 2024.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF

_______________________________ _______________

Susan Savage, Secretary Date

DRAFT Board Bylaws, Sept 17, 2024, Page 10 of 10 cs_kw_ss/Regional Government Services



Mendocino Coast Health Care District
Travel Reimbursement Policy

September 26, 2024

The purpose of this policy is to establish a travel and expense reimbursement policy for the
Mendocino Coast Health Care District (the District). This policy applies to both Board
Members and employees who incur actual and necessary expenses in the performance of
official duties, including attendance at business or professional conferences and training
seminars on behalf of the District, or other travel on authorized District business. In this
policy, the term “employee” includes contractors for the District for whom the District
reimburses expenses.

It is the intent of the District to assure compliance with IRS regulations and California
Government Code Section 53232.2 specifically relating to Board member reimbursements.

Authorization of Board Expenses

It is in the best interests of the District to maintain Board member participation in
professional, community and industry organizations. Expenses incurred by members of the
Board of Directors in attending meetings and conferences of the following organizations
and functions are hereby designated as reimbursable:

1.1 Meetings of organizations in which the District is an active member (e.g. Association of
California Health Care Districts, California Special Districts Association).

1.2 Meetings directly related to the conduct of District business. Included in this category
are groundbreaking and special events sponsored by healthcare organizations, both
governmental and non-profit, receiving financial support from the District.

1.3 Meetings of non-political community groups that extend a specific invitation to attend
and at which the Board member actively participates in the program.

1.4 Attendance at symposia and educational events, the primary purpose of which is to
elucidate or update industry members on health care issues or matters relating to special
districts or district board administration.

DRAFT Travel & Reimbursement Policy, September 26, 2024, Page 1 of 4 kw/Regional Government Services

Kathy W
Item 5b)



All other expenditures by Board members require specific prior approval at a regular
meeting of the Board.

Authorization of Employee Expenses

Attendance by employees at events approved for Board attendance is appropriate, subject
to prior approval by the General Manager or designee. In addition, special training sessions
and other unique one-time meetings or situations may be pre-approved by the General
Manager or designee on a case by case basis.

PROCEDURE

Reimbursement of business-related expenses pursuant to this policy is usually not
considered income to the person seeking reimbursement; however, all requests for
reimbursement must be substantiated, including documentation of the reason for the
expense, accompanied by itemized expenses with original receipts, prior to
reimbursement.

1. Required Forms and Procedures
The General Manager or designee, will establish such forms as are necessary and
appropriate to provide accurate records of travel requests and travel expense
reimbursement. It is the responsibility of the individual seeking reimbursement to obtain
and submit documentation for every expense. Reimbursement of expenses incurred
pursuant to this policy or with prior board approval, shall be made upon submission of
appropriate expense forms and receipts. Applicable receipts must be submitted with the
board member or employee’s name and nature of the business documented.

2. Per Diem Transportation Expenses
Use of air, train, private car or bus shall be selected on the basis of the most reasonable and
appropriate method, taking into consideration distance, time and total costs to the District,
after all expense items are tabulated. If the use of a personal automobile is required for
approved District business, the District will reimburse for mileage at the prevailing IRS
reimbursement rate on a per vehicle basis, regardless of the number of passengers. Use of a
privately owned vehicle on District business requires the driver to possess a valid
California driver’s license and to carry the minimum automobile insurance required by
law, and the District retains the right to request proof of insurance. Any damages to a
personal vehicle or service repairs are of a personal nature, and are not reimbursed by the
District. Expenses such as tolls and parking will be fully reimbursed upon presentation of

DRAFT Travel & Reimbursement Policy, September 26, 2024, Page 2 of 4 kw/Regional Government Services



the receipt. When the use of public air carrier transportation is approved, travel for all
personnel shall be in coach class or equivalent service.

While traveling, the use of rental vehicles is discouraged. Courtesy shuttle service, buses, or
limousine service should be utilized between airports and meeting locations. When rental
vehicles are used, the least expensive vehicle practical will be used.

4. Meal Expenses
While traveling for the District, the following meal reimbursement rates apply:

*If the work commitment requires leaving your home before 7:00 am or staying overnight
in the travel location, the eligible reimbursement per person for breakfast is up to $17.00.

*If the work commitment requires travel during the lunch hour, the eligible
reimbursement per person for lunch is up to $18.00.

*If the work commitment requires travel during the dinner hour, the eligible
reimbursement per person for dinner is up to $34.00.

In addition, the maximum daily meal allowance is $69.00 (which includes taxes and tips)
per person, per day, as established by the United States General Services Administration.
Expenses shall not exceed the daily meal limit amounts set, regardless of the amount of
receipts submitted. Meals that are included in conference registration fees will not be an
allowable expense. If the rates set by the United States General Services Administration
exceed those established in this policy, the federal government rates/allowances shall
supersede.

4. Lodging Expenses
The cost of lodging accommodations for approved conferences, seminars or meetings will
be arranged in advance directly by the District staff or reimbursed to the Board Member or
employee as outlined in the following paragraphs. In the case of advance arrangements
approved by the General Manager, a check will be issued to the traveler prior to departure
which will cover all hotel/motel charges, including parking.

Hotel and motel charges shall be based on single occupancy rates, and to the extent
possible will be at government or group rates. The District will not reimburse Board
Members or employees for lodging expenses incurred by family members when an Board
Member’s or employee’s family accompanies them, or for any charges for additional guests
in the same room. In instances where conference hotels are filled, the Board Member or
employee should attempt to secure comparable rates at the nearest hotel.

DRAFT Travel & Reimbursement Policy, September 26, 2024, Page 3 of 4 kw/Regional Government Services



5. Unauthorized Expenses
Items of personal nature are not reimbursable including: movies, entertainment, premium
television services, alcoholic beverages, dry-cleaning, spas, gyms, barber, magazines,
shoeshine, travel insurance, purchase of clothing or toiletries, loss of tickets, fines or traffic
violations, excess baggage, spouse and/or guest accommodations, office equipment and
other personal items. Quasi-social events such as retirement or political events, are not
reimbursable.

If unauthorized expenses have been paid by the District, (i.e., via credit card or petty cash),
the Board member or employee will be responsible for immediate reimbursement to the
District, either by personal check or an authorized payroll deduction. Unauthorized
expenses that are not immediately reimbursed shall be classified as income to the person
reimbursed, and may be prohibited by law.

6. Reports
Pursuant to Government Code § 53232.3, Board Members shall make a brief report on
meetings or events attended for which expenses are reimbursed, at the next regular meeting
of the Board.

Approval Signatures:

_______________________________ ______________________
Chair, Board of Directors Date

_______________________________ ______________________
Secretary, Board of Directors Date

DRAFT Travel & Reimbursement Policy, September 26, 2024, Page 4 of 4 kw/Regional Government Services



Board of Directors’ 2024 Regular Meeting Calendar

Meeting Time: 6:00pm

Meeting Location: Redwoods Room, Adventist Health Mendocino Coast Hospital
700 River Drive, Fort Bragg, CA 95437

January 25, 2024

February 29, 2024

March 28, 2024

April 25, 2024

May 30, 2024

June 27, 2024

July 25, 2024

August 22, 2024*

September 26, 2024

October 24, 2024**

November 14, 2024

December 12, 2024

*As Amended by Board Action on 7/25/24

**As Amended by Board Action on 9/26/24

September 26, 2024 kw/Regional Government Services

Kathy W
Item 5c)



This Page Intentionally Left Blank



Kathy W
Item 5d)



Kathy W
Item 5e)



Kathy W
Item 5f)





Kathy W
Item 5g)


